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Naval Hospital and Depot.

is curious to find that the origin

the first naval establishment of any
d on Vancouver Island was entirely
to the Crimean war.

\is being the case, I think a short
ount of the war in so far aslit af-
ed the Pacific station may be of
erest.
To mest people, I think it. will be a
.atter of surprise that the so-called
uimean war ever 1edched out to the
Pacific coast at all
Wwar was declared by H. M; the
een and the Emperor of the French
inst the Emperor of all the Rus-

1S Or

n  the

29th March, 1854, in-
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Il admirals, etc.,
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Russia as may
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ble.

‘“to commence and

measures
be considered

frigate Pique was at once sent
from England to augment the Pa-
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which was then com-
by “Rear-Admiral

of the

' David Price, his flagship-being
resident, and consisted of (as far
he traced) the Trincomalee,

can

1itr
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this
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period

Virago,
and Cockatrice.
the
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British and

h decided to join forces and co-
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forces everywhere;
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1e brig Obligado, all three being
2 ships only; they met the British
the first time at Honolulu in

18

54; various letters then pass-
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der sail,
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and silenced the remain-
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! this was accomplished the at-
g shirs moved out of range for

ne
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ery slight,

ht, the Virago towing the Forte

President and Picue kedgmg

lves out.

otal casualties duxmg this day

amounting

to one

ed and thirteen wounded.
this unsatisfactory skirmish,
correspondence took place be-

‘dmiral des

Pointes and Sir

‘icolson as to whether nroceed-
“hiould be abandoned or not, re-
g finally in the combined decision
inother attack should take place

e 4th of Sentember.

a.m. on that

day,
ww of the Eurydice
of the

Captain La
and Bur-

President in combined

¢harge ‘of a landing party consisting
of about 250 men from each squadron
with officers in addition, embarked in
the Virago,
the Forte alongside, and the disem-
barking boats on the opposite side
(l.e., of safety), and after taking the
President in tow, proceeded towards
the inner harbor.

As the ships came within range, the
outer batterfes opened fire, doing con-
siderable damage to the ships, especi-
.ally to the Forte,

The President then anchored abreast

the second battery previously men- |

tioned, eventually silencing it, and the

,Forte anchored abreast the third bat-

tery with a like result.

Disembarkation meanwhile took
rlace as rapidly as possible, and the
attempt to take the inner fortificz}
{ions was made.

In a very short time it was seen that
the object was impracticable, and the
entire party was compelled to retreat
and re-embarked with as much speed
as was nossible, the ships all moving
out to the anchorage in the bay as
®oon as ‘the embarkatiom was com-
plete.

The casualites incurred during this
latter operation were specially severe,

The principal reason for such a total
defeat was that the information ton-
eerning the strength ot the Russians
and their defences was afterwards
found to be honelessly underestimated
and inaccwrate: and it was also real-
ized too late that the narrow entrance
to the inner harbor rendered an attack
by more than two frigates at one time
an .impossibility.

The total losses and casualties in-
curred on the 4th of Sepntember were
as follows:

Pique—FEive officers wounded,; 12 sea-
men and marines killed, ‘22 seamen
and marines wounded.

Presidént—One officer killed, 3 offi-
cers wounded, 10 seamen and mar-
ires killed, 36 seamen and marines
wounded.

Virago—One officer wounded, 3 sea-
men and marines killed, 14 seamen and
marines wounded.

Total Bntish loss, 26 killed and 81
wounded.

Forte—Two officers killed, 1.officer
wounded, 8 seamen and marines kill-
ed, 20 seamen and marines woungded.

' Burydice—Three officers wounded, 8
ﬁeamenzgnd marines killed, 17 segmen

“and marires wounded.

Obligado—One officer killed, 2 officers
Wounded, 6 seamen and marines Kkilled,
26 seamen and marines wounded.

Total French loss, 26 Kkilled and 69
wounded.

The original idea of this demonstra-
tion by the Allies was “to give fhe
whalers time to leave their fishing
grounds without molestation from the
Russian vessels of war, and secondly,
tc attempt an attack on the shore de-
fences.”

The first part of this intention was
ncw - considered to have hei carried
out, and although the lattere%art had
totally failed, it was decided by mu-
tual agreement between Admiral des
Pointes and Sir Fred. Nicolson that no
further hostilities should bhe attempt-
ed, so after the canture of a Russian
merchant - vessel, the Sitka, the two
squadrons separated, and on.the 7th of
September the, British shins with the
prize Sitka proceeded to :Vancouver
Island.

The foregoing account. shows there-
fore, that the English fleet arrived at
Vancouver Island in the autumn of
i854 with a larce number of wounded
men on board. and as no accommoda-
tion could be provided for them on
shore, the shivs proceeded at once to
San Francisco, where they arrived in
November.

The prize Sitka was eventually taken
to England by the officers and crew of
H. M. S. Plover, which shin had been
found unfit for service at San Fran-
ciged at this time.

In February, 1855, we find the new
ccmmander in  chief, , Rear Admiral
Bruce, writing from Valparaiso to
Governor Douglas tkat ‘“in all prob-
ability an opportunity will be afforded
me of visiting the Island in the month
0T July next, in my flagship, the Mon-
arch, and of bringing with me other
ships of war.

19 guns, | upon the arrival of the squadron, that

nmay serve as a temporary hospital for
the sick and wounded, the want of

| which was so seriously felt last year.”

This was written on the eve of the
Geparture of the admiral and his fleet
tor Petropauloski; and it may be of in-
terest to briefly relate the final pro-
ceedings in connection with this place.

The intention of the Allies had evi-
dently been again to co-operate, as the
Frerch fleet consisted of four ships and
the British of five ships froni the Pa-
cific station, with two additional ones
from the China command.

The fleets met off Petropauloski on
the 30th of May, 1855, and found the
place entirely deserted, ‘“not a ship,
gun, or person,” Admiral Bruce re-
rorts; after the French had burnt the
town of Petronauloski the combined
scuadron~proceeded to Sitka, arriving
tkere in July, and found no Russian
sLips of war or opposition of any kind;
the Russian war as far as the Pacific
was concerned was therefore at an
end, although hostilities did not ter-
minate until May 1st, 1856, nearly a
year later.

On receipt of Admiral Bruce’'s letter,
Governor Douglas immediately had
three buildings erected on Perry
Foint, or what is now known ias
Duntze Head, immediately at the en-
trance to Esquimalt harbor; they
were of wood and were built by the
Hudson’s Bay Company at ‘a cost of
£832, the land set apart for this pur-
pose consisting of a seven acre lot

which vessel then lashed.

Your Excellency will |

with the boundary' line skirtlnv close
along the buildings:

On Admiral Bruce’s arrival at Es-
quimalt later on, he found “three com-
modious buildings, which would have
proved most valuable to the squadron
had it been engaged with the enemy
and suffered the casugities that I had
reason to anticinate.” :

Some time elapsed before the build-
ings were actually takep charge of by
the naval authorities, chiefly owing to
the admiral's. dissatisfaction at the
cost incurred in their erection; how-
ever, eventually Captain J. C. Provost,
of H. M. S. Satellite, took them over
from Governor--Douglas on the 21st
August, 1857, a most minute inventory
being made for the mutual satisfaction
of the admiral and the governor.

Governor Douglas evidently thodght
very highly of these buildings, as in
his report to. the admiral concerning
them, dated 28th July, 1857, he states
“these buildings will last, with ordin-
ary care, for half a century’”; the ac-
curacy of the governor's judgment may
be gauged by the fact that two $f
these three buildings are still standing
and in good ‘eondition; until the dis-
establishment of the naval yard in
March, 1205, one was in use as the
official residences of the boatswain
and carpenter of the yard, the other
being the main offices of the establish-
ment; the date of erection is errone-
cusly given on the buildings as 185%, a
year earlier than was the fact.

In September, 1855, Governor Doug-
las' anxiety to have Esquimalt made
a general naval depot is shown by his
writing to the Secretary of State for
the Colonies offering, on behalf of the
colony, to build a storehouse out of
the colony’s public funds, and at the
same time Admiral Bruce recommends
the admiralty to permanently retain
these buiidings for naval purposes, and
sthat a store and provision depot should
be formed at Esquimalt.

Meanwhile the use of the buildings
was evidently much appreciated by
the fleet, and in January, 1856, the
senior officer in northern waters re-

ports directly to the admiralty that

one houge i8 being used as a hospita

for officers‘and men ‘(this is the build-
ing lately .in use as an office), and one
buiiding as a store and provision room.

At the latter end of 1858 half of the
unused building (which stood on the
ground occupied Jately by the naval
storekeeper “house) was convertéd in-
to a drawing office ‘for -the- use of the
surveying officers of H. M. S. Plum-
per, then® commmencing her important
work of surveying in"these waters.

In October, 1859, the admiral, Sir H.
L. Baynes, appointed the assistant
surgeon of the Plumper, Dr. Samuel
Campbell, to act as medical officer in
charge, and he was then given for
quarters the other half of the house
where the Plumper’'s drawing office
was.

On Dr. Campbell’s appointment, the
building hitherto used for -provisions,
etc., was also utilized for hospital ac-
commodation, and in July, 1860, a sup-
ply of medical stores for the shios was
sent out by the admiralty, to be kept
at Esquimalt, showing the growing
importance of the station in the eyes
of the authorities in England.

In November, 1858, Admiral Sir R.
L. Baynes writes to the admiralty
that” “the Zround on which the naval
hospital stands is well suited in every
1espect’ for 'the purposes, "but should
it be their Lordships’ intention at any
future time to erect storehouses or
form a naval establishment, then the
space would be found very limited”;
he then points out that a reserve for
public purposes of 17 acres adjoining
the present site is very suitable for
“any purpose their ‘Lordships may
deem advisable to appropriate it for’’;
he further warns the admiralty that
all the land round .Esquimalt harbor
L.as been bought by speculators.

Acting on this, the governor receiv-
ed orders dated January, 1859, from

England, to reserve this land for the |

use of the navy, which was according-
1y done.

An immense amount of correspond-
ence passed between
here and the admiralty as to making
Esquimalt a permanent station, and
ir._his reply to an erder calling for a
general report on the subject, we find
Admiral Sir R. L. Baynes in May,
1859, writing to the admiralty a state-
ment, most favorable to Esquimalt,
the only drawback being “possible de-
sertion to the U. S. of Washington,”
he also remarks that “British Colum-
bia promises at no distant period to be
rerhaps one of the most valuable pos-
sessions.”

Although the admiralty appointed
a staff of three attendants to the hos-
pital in August, 1860, the establishment
is invariably called most carefully

o )’ indicating a doubt as to;
temporary g i only just completed before the yard

its eventual retention.

Admiral Kingeome in November,
1863, again urged most strongly the ne-
cessity of a naval hospital being per-
manently established at Esquimalt,
and it is somewhat difficult to under-
stand why these strong recommenda-
tions from the admiral on the spot
were not adopted without further de-
lay.

In the =arly part of the year 1862
the imnortant work of the boundary
ccmmission, under Lieut.-Col. J. S.
Hawkins, R. E., which had been going
or: for the previous four years, was
terminated, and in May of the same
year the buildinegs in Skinner’s Cove
which the Royal Engineers, employed
on this work, had been occupying.
were formally transferred to the navy
for a navy hospital, together with ten
acres of land.

The hospital was then used without
interruption until August, 1869, when
on ‘the representation of Admiral

Hastings, it was ordered to ‘be closed,

“a trusty sick berth steward to be |

left in charge of the buildings, anil
furniture,” and this was&accordingly
carried out on the 3ist? December
1869, ERg

Although nominally closi!d use was
still made ‘of the hospital-buildings by
the ships:of the fleet at intervals, un-
til once again on the urgent represen-
tations of the next commander-in-
chief, Admiral Farquhar, the hospital
after being closed for more thdan two
years, was re-opened, an assistant sur-
geon being appointed in charge In
February, 1872; froem this-date the hos-
pital was apparently.. considered as
permanent, and the -word “temporary”
then disavpears from the records.

The history of the hgspital after
this date was uneventful, brick build-
ings with modern conveniences gradu-
ally taking the place of the original
wooden buildings, of whieh one- only
now remains with the date of its erec*
tion, 1859, over it.

The naval hespital was formally
closed in February, 1905, and is now,
once again, as in 1870-1, in the charge
of a caretaker.

After the transfer of the hospital to
Skinner’s Cove, taking place at the
latter end of 1862, the former build-
ings at Duntze Head then . became
available for the much talked of depot
for naval provisions and stores, and

the admirals |
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in November, 1863, Admiral Kingcome
speaks of the official information that
the provisions, ete., for this purpose
are being dispatched from England;
it is therefore nresumed that the ac-
tual stores arrived early in 1864, and
made Esquimalt, for the first time in
its history, a naval depot.

As in the case of the naval hospital,
sc¢ it was with the naval depot, and
when the authorities definitely decided
on the permanent nature of the es-
tablishment, its later history becomes
uneventful; wooden buildings for var-
ious purposes were gradually erected
uvntil about 1820, when repairs for the
fleet commenced to be carried out in
the yard, and substantial brick build-
ings were erected by degrees for this
and other nurnoses, some even being
ii progress at the final elosing of the
yard in March, 1905.

At the time of closing the yard was

for its size very completely equipped |

with repairing machinery, moulding
and fitting shops, nrachinery, etec.,
very commodious storehouses for . all
purposes, hoat houses, etc.

A brick orison for naval purposes
was erected in 1899 in the yard, amd
there are several official residences,

| the finest being that lately occupied by

the naval 'store officer,
built in 1885; fine naval barracks for
the accommodation. of ships’ com-
panies of ships under repair were

which was

was closed.

At different times in its history; re-
commendations were made to move
the yard to other positions, chiefly be-
cause of its exposed position. with re-
gard to attack from seaward, and in
1&R81 it was strongly urged , that it
should be transferred to the Indian
reserve fronting Plumper bay higher
up the harbor, but Admiral Lyons,
then commander-in-chief,” was strong-
1y opposed to this owing to the in-
sufficiency of water for deen draught
vessels of the Swiftsure class, then the
largest vessel on the station.

Esquimalt Harbonr.

The existing name of the harbour is
an adaptation of that used by the In-
dians, and although spelt “Esquimalt”
is always pronounced with the first
letter omitted, thus “Squimalt.”

The English meaning -of the name is

PR ek v > 2
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, said to be “a place gradually shoaling.”

The spelling is very muech wvaried in
old documents, but so far as I have
been able to trace,” was generally ac-
cepted in its present form about the
year 1846,

The first visit on record of an Ruro-
pean to the harbour is that of Sub-
Lieutenant Manuel Quimper of the
Spanish navy on the 30th June, 1790;
this officer was dt this time in com-
mand of the British sloop Princess
Royal, which had been, shortly before,
seized by the Spaniards at Nootka, to-
gether with three other British vessels
for attempting to found British estab-
lishments within Spanish dominions,

Quimper gave. the name “Puerto De
Cordova,” to what we now call Esqui-
malt Harbour, but this unfortunately,
like so0 many other of the original
Spanish names on the coast, was en-
tirely supplanted by the present fami-
liar name, and few even know now of
the first name given it by its European
discoverer.

The name was given in honour of
the- Viceroy of Mexico, Don Antonio
Maria Bucarcli Villacis y Ceordova, a
Lieut.-General inl the Spanish army,

The first survey of the harbour was
made in 1847, by Lieut. James Wood,
commanding H. M. surveying vessel
Pandora; assistance in this work was
given by Mr. R. M. Inskip, naval in-
structor of H. M. 8. Fisgard; the
points, islands, etc., in the harbour be-
ing all named after the captain and of-
ficers of this latter vessel, as follows:

Ship.. .. a4 Fisgard Island
Captain J. A. Duntze....Duntze Head
Lieut. J. R. Rodd..Rodd Hill and Point
iz oRh b, ] Dyke Point
“ @G. Y. Patterson...Patterson Point
E. W. Lang.. ..Lang Cove

“ E. D. Ashe. .Ashe Head

.. +« McCarthy Island

Lt. Marmes F J Qichdrds P
..Richards Island
Dunn’s Nook

Surgeon T. R, Dunn
Master E, P. Cole ..Cole Island
Paymaster T. Rowe.. ..Rowe Stream
Nav. Inst. R. M. Inskip.Inskip Islands

Constance Cove was named at the
same time after H. M. 8. Constance,
then on the station.

Thetis. Island, Constance:Cove.

As far as records go, this island was
the first land at Esquimalt used. for
any naval purposes; in a letter from
Admiral Baynes to Governor Douglas
respecting the government selling the
island to the harbourmaster, Mr, Jere-
miah Nagle, he distinctly states in sup-
port of his claim on behalf of the navy,
that the island ‘“has been occupied by |
the navy for naval purposes and has|
had buildings erected on it since the
yvear 1852;” what- these buildings were
is not known,

In consequence of this, the island was
formally reserved for naval purposes
in 1859, its total area then being about
half an acre.

On the general introduction of steaml
into the navy, the want of a coal store ]
at Esquimalt was felt and early in 1860 ‘
two large wooden sheds were erected
on Thetis Island, capable of holding 1,-
500 tons of coal; these were built by
the artificers of the fleet at a total |
| cost of £292 sterling.

Between the years 1880-6 the excava-
tions from the new graving dock being
built close at hand, were deposited in |
the space between the island and main-
land, eventually joining them together,
and at thg present time no trace of the |
original Thetis Island, as an island,
can be seen.

In November, 1898, an additional |
piece of land of about one-sixth of|
an acre, adjoining Thetis Island was |
transferred to the admiralty by the Do- |
minicn government for the purpose of
| erecting new coal sheds, which were
accordingly built between the years
1899 and 1903; they are capable of hold-
ing 10,000 tons of coal.

Cole Island, Esquimalt Harbour.

On the gradual increase in numbers
of the ships of the navy in northern
waters it became necessary. to make
separate provision for a magazine for
their use. and early in 1860 the admi-
ral, Sir R. L. Baynes, acting in con-
junction with Colonel R. C. Moody, R. |
“E., then chief commissioner of lands
and works; after inspecting various lo-
calities chose Cole Island, at the en-
treme head of the harbour, as the most
suitable position ,and in May of that |
year, the Island was formally transfer-
red to the navy by Governor Douglas
for this special purpose.

In August, 1890, difficulties as to the
water supply to the island arose; and
a new site for the magazines was pro- |
posed at the site of the present sub- |
marine mining wharf in Constance
Cove, but this was not carried ouf ow-
ing to the water trouble being eventu-
ally settled satisfactorily; how such
an unserviceable position as this latter
was ever suggested, seems most ex-
traordinary.

In 1902, plans for a complete maga-
zine establishment at Patterson Point,
on the west side of the head of Esqui-
malt harbour were drawn up and sub- |
mitted to the admiralty, who subse-
quently requested the Dominion Gov-
ernment to secure possession of the ne-
cessary land.

The admiralty took over this land on-
1y shortly before the closing of the
naval establishments, but it is under- |
stood it has since been given up, and |
has again reverted to its former own-
ers, the Hudson’s Bay Company.

The small area of one acre which the
island possesses was gradually almost
covered with magazines, stores and a
guardroom ,to accommodate the marine
guard stationed there; all these build~
ings still remain in place.

Dunn’s Nook, Esquima,lt Harbour.

On the® first arrival of torpedo boats
at Bsquimalt, the necessity for haul-
ing them up for repairs at once became
evident, and in June, 1885, permission
was granted to the naval authorities by
Mrs. Bushby, the owner of.the prap-
erty at Dunn’s Nook, on the west side
of the harbour, to erect temperary ways
for this purpose.

The present torpedo boat shed in the
naval yard was meanwhile cammmenced,
being completed and first used during
the year 1886.

Man of War Anchorage, Con-
stance Cove, Esgmimalt.

From the ear}iest days of the arrival
of the navy in \British Columbia wat-
ers, Constance Cove was invariably
used as the special anchorage for men-
of-war, and it was evidently regarded
more or less definitely as such for
many years by the naval authorities,
and also by the local government ,al-
though not officially recognized,

In November, 1877, Admiral de Hor-
sey, then commander-in-chief of the
station, asks that steps be taken to set
aside a portion of the harbour as a
man-of-war anchorage, stating that in
all places where naval dockyards were
established, it was the universal prac-
tice to place within the jurisdiction of
the admiralty such portion of the har-
bour as might be necessary for the use
of H. M. ships.

The harbour master for Victoria and
Esquimalt having been called on for a
report on the subject, ‘recommends
Constante Cove as being the proper
place for this anchorage and forwards
a plan showing its proposed limits; the
Lieutenant-Governor of British Colum-
bia then forwarded Admiral de Hor-
sey’s request with the harbour mast-
er’s plan, ete,, to the Dominion govern-
ment. urging that the proposal should
be carried out.

No further action of any kind .seems
to have been taken on this subject at
this time. {

In April, 1883, the questjon was‘asaln
raised, owing to the naval autborltles
at HEHsquimalt requesting the harbour-
master to remove an American vessel
from Constance Cove, but again no fur-
ther progress was made as to its set-

; tlement,

In August, 1889, by the orders of Ad-
miral Heneage, then commander-in-
chief, a German barque was removed

| from Constance Cove to another posi-

tion outside the usual man-of-war an-
chorage, and once again the subject
was brought up, the correspondence
this time being somewhat acrimonious,

A committee of the executive counail
at Ottawa, was eventually ordered to
report fully on the subject, and in Oc-
tober, 1899, they issued their statement;
the report was very definite, and brief-
| ly was that in-view of the representa-
| tlons of Admirals de Horsey and He-
neage, Constance Cove, being the por-
tion of Esquimalt harbour, situated to
the eastward of a line drawn between
Duntze and Ashe Heads should be set

[apart as a man-of-war anchorage, the
I only conditions being that access to

the Cove should at all times be given

| to vessels desiring to make use of the

graving dock situated there.

An order-in-council was immediate-

71y issued carrying out this report.

In the following month, the executive
council of British Columbia forwarded
a protest totally condemning the ac-

| tion of the Dominion Government in

thus giving up Constance Cove to the
navy as a man-of-war anchorage.
Although this latter protest was so
sweeping in its condemnation of their
order-in-council, the Dominion Govern-
ment appear to have taken no further
action in the matter until April, 1804,
when an amended order-in-council was
issued, extending the original provi-
sions of the former order of October,
1889, to ‘‘vessels requiring to proceed

| to the different wharves at present sit-
| uated on the shores of
| Cove.”

Constance

In July, 1897, a plan of Constance
Cove ,showing the exact position of all
existing wharves was approved by the

| Governor-General.

On the abolition of the Pacific station
in the early part of 1905, the man-of-
war anchorage was no longer required
to be reserved solely for naval purpos-
es; and by mutual agreement between
te admiralty and the Dominion Gov-
ernment, an order-in-council was is-
sued at Ottawa in July of that year,
removing the reservation previously ex-
isting.

Officers Royal Naval Club,
Esquimalt. -

The Officers Royal Naval Club, Es-
quimalt, was built in August, 1867, by
Mr. Williams, a resident of Esquimalt,
and was by him leased to the officers of
the fleet as a club-house.

The building consisted of a billiard
room, reading room, Kitchen, lavatory,
with offices attached, outside the build-
ing, and six small rooms upstairs,” and
so remained until the end of 1899, when
certain structural improvements toek
place.

By the terms of the lease between
Mr. Williame and the officers of the
fleet, the former acted; as steward of
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the club at a salary of £60 a year. All
wines, spirits, ete,, were provided by
him, and he received the profits aris-
ing therefrom. On his part, having
built the club-house and furnished ii,
he undertook to keep it in proper re-
pair and provide the club serygnts.’

When the club was first started, Cap-
tain Oldfield, H. M. 8. Malacca, was
elected president, being relieved short-
iy after by Captain Dawkins, H, M, 8.
Zealous, Real Admiral the Hen. G. F.
Hastings becoming patron of the club.
" All conmimissioned officers of the royal
navy=were eligible for election as mem-
bers, clvillaris and officers of the royal
navy not holding ocommissions being
eligible as honarary members,

The subscription for members was
$2 per month, while that for honorary
sinembers was §1 par month.

In November, 1868, it being found
that Mr, Williams was working the
club at a loss, his salary was increased
to £150 yearly.

In December, 1876, only one ship, H
M. 'S. Rocket, being present in har-
bour, and only a few officers of that
ship belonging to the chub, it was re-
solved to close the club until more ships
arrived.

In June, 1877, the club was reopened,
but another arrangement was entered
into with Mr. Willlams, by which he
received $1.50 “per month from each
member and 75 cents per month from
each honorary member. He supplied
wines, spirits, lights, attendance, etc.,
and received all profits arising there-
from. He also undertook to keep the
club-house, furniture, etc., in proper

bilities.” A managing committee was
appointed under the pregidency of Cap-
tain Robinson, H. M. S. Opal, which
revised the price list, etc.,, and looked
after the interest of the members.

The above arrangements only existed
till December, 1877, when a contract
was entered into with Mr. Williams
whereby he leased the building, furni-
ture, etc., to the members for $25. a
month, the members managing the club
themselves. This lease was for four
months, but at its expiration it was
renewed from month to month until
April, 1880, when it was taken on lease
for one year at a monthly rental of
#30, with the proviso that all outside
repairs were made good by Mr. Will-
iams, whilst the members were respon-
sible, for the inside repairs. At this
time Captain. Markham, H. M. S.
Triumph was president of the commit-
tee,

In 1883 the rules were revised, those
made in 1873 having so far continued in
force, Captain Aitchison, H, M. 8.
Swiftsure, being president of the com-
mittee at this time,

The question of buying the club, and
land on which it is built, had for some
years been contemplated, but it was
not till July, 1886, that it was finally
decided to do so, and the ground, build-
ings and contents were bought from
Mr. Williams and his partner, Mr. Ar-
thur, by Rear-Admiral Sir M. Culme-
Sevmour, Bart., for the members of the
club, the money being advanced to him
by the Bank of British Columbia on a
mortgage on the club and ground. The
price paid was $3,000. The committee,
Captain H. Rose, H. M. S. Triumph, be-
ing -president, then insured the club,
furniture, etc., for this sum.

By December, 1889, the club had been
re-roofed, new windows had been put
in, and the debt reduced to. $2,050.

In August, 1893, the debt still owing
was $1,044, and it was not till Septem-
ber, 1895, that it was finally paid off.

The Naval club, and the ground on

which it stands, is now the property of
the members of the club, and is held in
trust for them by the British Colum-
bia Corporation, Limited, of Temple
Buildings, Fort street. They also own
a further piece of land at the back of
the club, but the strip of ground on
which the. verandah, in front of the
building, is built, is leased from the ad-
miralty—five shillings a year being paid
for it. The trustees have possession of
all deedls and documents relating to the
property, size of it, ete.
“ In 1896, the club was fitted with the
telephone, and In 1898, electric light was
introduced throughout, and a new bil-
liard table bought,

In 1900 a new aressing room with of-
fices attached was built. The entrance,
which was previously through the bil-
lard room, was closed by a window,
and a new entrance made on the side of
the club facing the harbour. The bil-
lHard room was closed in by a bulk-
heading, which formed one side also of
the new entrance passage. The bar,
which had ireviously openad irto the
billiard room, was now constructed so
that it op2ned .1to the old dres ng
room, whaiich late: or .as converted
int> a smoking room. The total cost of
these improvements was $2,164.

After these improvements had been
carried out the rules were again re-
vised, and the committee, Captain T.
P. Walker, H. M. S. Warspite, being
chairman, increased the insurance on
the club, furniture, etc., to-$4,000.

In February, 1805, on the abolition of
the Pacific squadron the biliard tables
were sold, and the club was closed.

Royal Naval Canteen, Esquimait.

The Royal Naval canteen was open-
ed in June, 1880, for the use of the fleet,
Rear-Admiral F. H. Stirling, H. M. S.
Triumph, being commander-in-chief at
the time. The money to build it was
raised by private subscription, which
was repaid out of the profits of the
canteen as they accrued: the admiral-
ty also gave a grant of £50 towards
this purpose.

(Concluded To-morrow.)
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